



graph office. Its original address was just Elm and State (First Street). Roy Chase was one of the first station and postmasters. The depot brought in the news of the world and launched Carlsbad's comings and goings.

In 1907, the station was refurbished and renamed by the Santa Fe Railroad as just "Carl," in an effort to end the confusion that still exists between Carlsbad, CA and Carlsbad, NM. (Ever been asked where the caverns are?) Pressure from the citizenry brought the full name of "Carlsbad" back by the 1920s.

Like all of California history, changes turn on too much water or too little. Drought in the late 1800s slowed land speculation to a trickle. As the boom died down, so did the number of passengers. The Carlsbad Hotel burned down in 1896. The Southern California line ran not only north-south in 1882 but also ran northeast to the Temecula Valley and Colton beyond. These tracks were damaged by several floods and finally washed out in the El Niño floods of 1916.

Even with passenger decline, the depot remained the nucleus of the Village into the 1940s for shipping crops and transporting troops for two world wars. Beans, peas, corn and, of course, bulbs and cut flowers kept the freight trains' arrivals and departures at a steady rate. After World War II and the building of Interstate 5, passengers took the last train to Carlsbad in 1957. The depot closed for rail business in 1960.

B.M. "Chris" Christiansen was keen to get Frazier's well and the depot designated as historic landmarks. To remind Carlsbadians of its historic importance, CARL CARL WAS A



a) In 1910, the station had been rechristened "Carl" to avoid confusion with Carlsbad, NM. b) The depot, boasting a fresh coat of paint, belonged to the city in 1969 (photos courtesy of Carlsbad History Room).

the depot became the venue for several art contests and symposiums. There was a slight tug-of-war over the building in the early '60s before Santa Fe deeded the depot to the city in 1966.

By then, the depot needed renovations to become the office of the Carlsbad Chamber of Commerce as, once again, Carlsbad land specu-

lation boomed. Carlsbad had doubled in population from the early '50s to the '60s. Former Carlsbad Councilman Claude "Red" Helton led this charge.

Before Gofundme was a thing, Carlsbad had a tremendous tradition of coming together and pooling resources to promote both historic preservation and good community growth. The depot's restoration was funded locally and with state grants. A festive dedication celebration was held on December 10, 1982, and presided over by the late Mayor Claude "Bud" Lewis. The late '80s saw the Chamber of Commerce outgrow the depot.

It's now the site of the Carlsbad Visitor Center, with a new address at 400 Carlsbad Village Drive. With walk-in traffic, the depot is still the welcome spot for guests and the terminus for new Carlsbadians.

When you hear the whistle blow, smile, then wander into the depot and breathe in the history. Let that whistle remind us how this little building conducted Carlsbad into all the directions it has grown into: a major tourist attraction, a storied surf town, a golf trifecta, a foodie destination, a business hub and a great place to live.

As always, a special thanks to the Carlsbad Historical Society, the Carlsbad History Room at the Georgina Cole Library and Carlsbad historian par excellence Susan Gutierrez.



c) The depot building was the home of the Carlsbad Visitor Center by the 1990s (photo courtesy of Carlsbad History Room). d) Today, the depot continues to welcome Carlsbad visitors to explore a bit of history (photo by Ann Patterson).

CARLSBAD

42 carlsbad magazine • september/october 2021 clickoncarlsbad.com 43